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UNITED STATES DES’I‘R&C’F COUR: iz 25T RICT OF SALTFGRNIA
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

IN RE NAPSTER, INC. COPYRIGHT No. 0 00-1369 MHP

No. L 00-4725 MHP
LITIGATION

MEMORANDUM AND ORDER

Plaintiff Marthew Katz, 2 music producer, alleges copyright infringement, trademark
infringement, unfair competition and interference with economic relations by Napster, Inc.
{"Napster”), and individual defendants John W. Fanning, Sean Fanning, Sean Parker, Hank Barry,
Hummer Winblad, Bob Bozeman, Yosi Amram, Joe Kraus, Fred Durst, Roger McGuinn, Jonathan
H. Greene and Does 1 through 10. Now befare the court are the motions of defendants Hank Barry,
Yosi Amram, Shawn Famning, Hummer Winblad, Rob Bozeman and Fred Durst to dismiss the
complaint for failure to state a claim under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6) and John W.
Fanning's motion for judgment on the pleadings pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(c).
Fred Durst’s motion for sanctions is also before the court. Having considered the parties’ arguments

and for the reasons set forth below, the court enters the following memorandum and order.

ACKGROUND

This action {s one of several copyright infringement actions against Napster, an [nternet
service that facilitates the downloading of MP3 music files, cwrrently peudiﬁg before this court. See
In re Napster, C 00-1369 MHP. Because the court has discussed the Napster service at length in

prior orders in this proceeding, and becanse the parties are familiar with the system, the court will
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limmit this background section to informatjon relevant to defendants’ motions. For the purposes of
these motions, the court draws on the factual allegations of the complaint.

Maphew Kaitz describes himself as a “producer and owner of music” having created several
musical bands including “jefferson airplane,” “Moby Grape,” *I’s 2 Beautiful Day,” “Indian
Puddin’ and Pitpe,” “Tripsichord” and "Fraternity of Man.” Complain: § 4.

Karz contends that Hank Barry is the CEO of Napster, Shawn Fanning is the co-founder of
napster.com and John W. Fanning is the registrant of the domain name “napster.com.” Complaint -
€4 6-7, 5. According to the complaint, Hummer Winblad, a company operating within the stare of
California, is a "part~owner of [Napster] by virue of 2 $15 Million venture capital investment.”
Complaint § 10. Katz alleges that Yosi Amram is a part-owner of Napster “by virtue of a $2 Million
private investment” and Bob Bozeman is a part-owner “by virtue of a $2 Million private investment
by his company svangels.com.”’ Complaint § 11-12. Fred Durst is a member of the musical band
“Limp Bizikdt.” Complaint § 14.

On July 24, 2000, Katz filed this action in the United States District Court for the Central |
Distriet of California alleging copyright infringement, rademark infringement, unfair competition
and interference with economic relations. See Karz v. Napster, Inc. etal, C00-07966 CAS. On
December 20, 2000, the action was mansferred to this court, reassigned to Case No. C 004725 MHP
and coordinated with the Multi-District Litigation pending before this cowrt in In re Napster, Inc., C
00-1369 MHP.

G ANDA
L Rule 12(b)(6)

In considering the sufficiency of a complaint under Rule 12(b)(6), the court will not grant a
motion to dismiss “unless it appears beyond doubt that the plaintiff can prove no set of facts in
support of his claims which would entitle him 1o relief.” Conley v. Gibson, 355 U.S. 41, 45-46
(1957). The Federal Rules do not require plaintiff to plead in detail the facts upon which he bases
his claim; he musi merely set forth & “short and plain statement of the claim™ that gives the

defendant fair notice of its nature and grounds. See id. at 47 (cining Fed. R. Civ. P. 8(2)(2)). Courts

2
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in the Ninth Circuit have ofien stated that unwarranted inferences and conclusory allegations of law,
even when pled as facts, are insufficient 1o defear a morion 1 dismiss. See In re Verfone Sec.

Litig., 11 F.3d 865, 868 (9th Cir. 1993).

11 Rple 12(¢c)

Any party may move for judgment on the pleadings after the pleadings are closed but within
such time as not 1o delay the trial. Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(c). A motion for judgment on the pleadings is
properly granted when, 1aking all the allegations in the pleading as true, the moving party is entitled

10 judgment as a matier of law. See Nelson v. City of Irvine, 143 F.3d 1196, 1200 (5th Cir. 1998).

DISCUSSION
L Copytight Infringement

In hus Second Claim for Relief, Katz alleges conmributory copyright infringement against all
defendants. Although the Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. §§ 101 e seq., does not expressly impose
liability on anyone ather than direct infringers, courts have long recognized that in certain
circumstances, vicarious or contributory liability will be imposed. See Fonovisa, Inc. v. Cherry
Auctiort, Inc., 76 F.3d 259, 261 (5th Cir. 1996).

A, Conmbutory Infrinpernent

Karz asks this court to adopt what is best described as a “tertiary theory” of liability for
contributory infringement. He argues that defendants are liable for contributory infringement on the
basis of their relationship to Napster. Katz does not allege that Napster is a direct infringer, but
would hold Napster liable for contributory infringement on the basis of the service Napster provides
to its users. Under this formulation, Napster users are the direct infringers, Napster is the secondary

infringer and the individual defendants are tervary infringers. The court finds no support for this

[legal proposition. Rather, courts have consistently held that liabiliry for contributory infringement

requires substantial participation in a specific act of direct infringement. See e.g. Cable/Home

Communication Corp. v. Nerwork Prod.. Inc., 902 F.24d 829, 845 (11th Cir. 1990) (“Conrributory

infringement necessarily must follow a finding or direct or primary infringement.”); Gershwin

3
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1 || Publ’g Corp, v. Columbia Arrjsts Mgmt., Inc., 443 F.2d 1159, 1162-63 (2nd Cir. 1971); see also 3
Nimmer on Copyright § 12.04[A}{2][a] a1 12-73 (“In order 10 be deemed a contributory infringer,
the authorization or assistance must bear some direct relationship to the infringing acts, and the
pérscn rendering such assistance or giving such authorization must be acting in concert with the
infringer”).

Even if the “tertiary theory™ were a sound basis for the assertion-of claims of conwributory
infringement against individuals other than the direct infringers, Katz’s complaint against the
individual defendants must be dismissed.

(1)  Hank Barry

10 Kaiz alleges that Barry is liable for contributory infringement because he “substantially

A AR S T + NN V', U N UV S

11} conuiburtes] to the inernational unawthorized copying and distribution of musical sound recordings
12 || by investing substantial sums of money, supporting, gniding, encouraging, and promoting Defendant
13 || NAPSTER, INC. for their own funure benefit.” Complaint ﬁ] 51. The complainr offers no factual

14 || support for this conclusory assertion.” Moreover, Katz does not allege that Barry “knowingly”

IS || contnibutes to the infringing conduct of another. Karz therefore has failed to state a claim for

16 [| contributory infringement against Barry.

17 (2)  BobBozeman ‘
18 Katz alleges that Bozeman is liable for contributory infringement because he “substantially

19§ conwibure(s] 10 the international unauthorized copying and distribution of musical sound recordings
20 | by investing substantial sums of money, supporting, guiding, encouraging, and promoting Defendant
21 | NAPSTER, INC. for [his] own furure benefit.” Complaint § 51. Atcording to Karz, Bozeman is a
22 | parv-owner in Napster.by virtue of a two million dollar investment in Napster by Bozeman’s

23} company. Complaint ¥ I1.

24 Karz has not identified any specific actions by Bozeman. Rather, he alleges in purely

25 || conclusory fashion that Bozeman's firm “substantially contribute(s]” to unauthorized copying by

26 | reason of its investment in Napster. The court detects no factual basis to conclude that Bozeman

27 |j substantially contributed 1o a specific act of infringement.

28 (3  Hummer Winblad
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Katz alleges that Hummer Winblad “substantially contribute{s] 1o the international
unauthorized copying and distribution of musical sound recordings by investing substantial sums of
money, SUpporting, guiding, encouraging, and promoting Defendant NAPSTER, INC. for {its] own
future benefit.” Complaint § 51. Once again, the complaint offers conclusory allegations in place of
specific factual allegations.’ Katz does nor allege that Hummer Winblad substantially conmibuted to
a specific act of direct infringement. |

4 Yosi Amram

Katz alleges that Yosi Amram “substantially conmribute[s] to the internationa! unauthorized
copying and distriburion of musical sound recordings by investing substantial sums of money,
supporting, guiding, encouraging, and promoting Defendant NAPSTER, INC. for [his) own future -
beaefit.” Complaint § 51. Karz offers no factual supporr for this conclusory allegation. According
to an earlier portion of the complaint, Amram is a par-owner of Napster “by virtue of a $2 Million
private investment.” Complaint § 11. This allegation, standing alone, is insufficient to support a
contiburory infringement cause of action. '

(5)  Shawn Fannine and John W. Fanning

The Second Claim for relief contains no specific factual allegations relating to Shawn |
Fanning or John W. Fanning. Katz alleges that Shawn Fanning is a co-founder of napster.com.
Complaint § 7. Katz alleges that John W. Fanning is the registrant of the domain name
“napster.com.” Complaint § 6. These allegations provide an insufficient basis on which to conclude
that both individuals contributed, in a substantial way, w0 a specific act of direct infringement.

6) ed Durst

Karz alleges that Durst “substantially conpribute(s] to the international unauthorized copying
and distribution of musical sound recordings by encouraging, speaking positively, and by
participating in free concerts promoting Defendant NAPSTER, INC.™ Complaint { 50. Karz does
not allege that Durst participated in any way in the development or administration of the Napster
system. The allegations that Durst “encouraged™ or “spoke positively” about Napster, or that he
“participated” in some fashion in free concerts "promoting” Napster, are vague and Unspecific. Katz

fails to allege that Durst knowingly and substantially participated in a specific act of direct

5
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infringement.

In light of the court’s conclusion regarding the proposed “tertiary theory” of liability and the
deficiencies of Karz’s complaini, the court will dismiss with prejudice the contributory infringement
causes of action against the individual defendanrs.

B.  Vicarous Infringement

Karz alleges vicarious copyright infringement by all defendants int his Third Claim for Relief.
To sustain a cause of action for vicarious copynght infringement, a plaintiff must prove thar the
vicarious infringer has (1) the right and ability 1o supervise or control the infringing activity, and (2)
a direct financial interest in the infringing activities. See Fonovisa, 76 F.3d at 262-63; Gershwin,
443 F.2d at 1162. Once again, the court finds no support for Katz’s assertion that an individual can
be held vicariously liable for acts of someone other than the direct infringer.

() ank Ba mmer Winblad. Bob Bozeman and Yosi

Karz alleges that Barry, Hummer Winblad, Bozeman and Amram are lisble for vicarious
infringement because they “substantally contribute to the internarional unauthorized copying and
distribution of musical sound recordings by investing substantial sums of money, supporting,
guiding, encouraging, and promoting Defendant NAPSTER, INC. for their own future benefir.”
Complaint § 68. In addition, Kaiz alleges thar Napster has received over $17 million in investment
capital from Barry, Hummer Winblad, Bozeman and Amram, “al] of whom intend to profit from the
widespread copyright infringement described [in the complaint.]” Complaint § 70. Karz adds that
Hummer Winblad, as owner of website similar 1o napster:com, also 'stands to benefit if Napster
compiles a list of its users. Complaint § 71. ‘

Keaiz does nor allege that any of these defendants have the right or abiliry to supervise or
conrrol the infringing activity. Although the complaint alleges that these defendants “intend 1o
profit” from use of the Napster system, Katz does not assert that they have a direct financial in-tcrest
in the infringing activiry.

2) Sha: ing and Johpn W. Fannin
In pleading the vicarious infringement cause of action, the complaint contains no facnal

allegations relating 1o Shawn Fanning or John W. Fanning. It appears from the entirety of the

6
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complaint that Katz would hold Shawn Fanning liable for vicarious infringement as one of the *co-
founders™ of napster.com. See Complaint § 7. Katz-would hold John W. Fanning liable as the
registrant of the domain name “napster.com.” See Complaint § 6. The complaint does not allege
that either individual has the right or ability to contro! the infringement, or a direct financial interest
in the infringement. As pled, the cause of action for vicarious infringement cannot stand against
Shawn Fanning and John W. Fanning. ‘

(3) Fred Durst .

Ka1z alleges the Durst “substantially contribute{s] to the international unauthorized copying
and distriburion of musica} sound recordings by encouraging, speaking positively, and by
participating in free conceris promoting Defendant NAPSTER, INC.” Complaint 967 Setting
aside Katz's conclusory assertion, Katz does not allege a factual basis on which 1o conclude thar
Durst has the right or the ability to supervise or conmol the infringing activity. Absent such an
allegation, Katz cannot maintain a vicarious infringemenr cause of action against Durst.

The individual defendants are entitled to the dismissal of Katz's vicarious infringement cause

of action.

1. Califomia Civi] Code Section 980(a}(2)

Karz alleges in his Fourth Claim for Relief that all defendants have violated Katz’s exclusive
ownership interests in ceriain sound recordings in violation of California Civil Code section
980(a)(2). Section 980(a)(2) provides in part that the author of an original work of authorship
consisting of a sound recording initially fixed prior to February 15, 1972, has an exclusive
ownership interest therein until February 15, 2047. See Cal. Civ. Code § 980(2)(2). To recover for
infringement under this section, a plainuff must show Ihrée elements: (1) ownership by plaintiff of a
protectible property interest; (2) unauthorized copying of the material by defendant; and (3) damage
resulting from the copying. See Golding v. R.K.O. Pictures, nc., 35 Cal. 2d 650, 694 (1950).

Karz does not allege a single fact relating to the individual defendants in support of this
claim. Se¢ Complaint § 78. He does not allege that any of the individual defendanis engaged in

unautherized copying of the material. Moreover, Katz does not allege with any factual detail that he

7
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I

owns a protectible property interest or that he was damaged as a result of the copying. Karz's

Fourth Claim for Relief must be dismissed.

III1. Trademar ingement |

In his Fifth and Sixth Claims for Relief, Kaiz alleges thar all defendants violated his
trademarks in the names “It’s A Beautiful Day” and “Moby Grape,” respectively, A plaintiff may
establish a prima facie case of redemark infringement by showing rightful ownership of the marks
in suit and a likelihood of confusion or mistake amongst the public from defendants’ use of the

mark. See Sony Computers Enim’t America, Inc_v, Gamemasters, 87 F. Supp. 2d 976, 984 (N.D,

Cal. 1999).

(I Hank Barry, Hummer Winblad, Bob Bozeman and Yosi Amram

Karz alleges that moving defendants Barry, Hummer Winblad, Bozeman and Amram are
liable for trademark infringement because they “substantially contribute 1o the international
unauthorized use of plaindff’s mark by investing substantial sums of money, supporting, guiding,
encouraging and promoting Defendant NAPSTER, INC. for their own furure benefir.™ Complaint §
87, 95. This generalized, conclusory allegation is insufficient 1o sustain causes of action for
rademark infringement. Kaiz has failed 1o allege that any of these defendanis actually used a2 mark

owned by plaintiff.

(2) Shawn Fanning and John W. Fanning

The rademark infringemens claims comain no allegations relating to Shawn Fanning or John
W. Fanning. Katz does not allege that either Shawn Fanning or Joh’;z W. Fanning used a mark
awned by plaintiff, or that such use created a Jikelihood of confusion or mistake.

(3)  Fred Duyrst

ﬁ The wademark infringement claims are entirely devoid of factual allegations relating o
defendant Durst. Katz does nat allege that that Durst actually used the “It’s A Beautiful Day” or
“Moby Grape™ marks, or that Durst had any direct invekverﬁem in the alleged infringement of Karz’s
wademark rights,

Defendants are entitled 1o dismissal of Katz’s trademark infringement causes of action.

8
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Iv. Unfair Comperition
In his Seventh Claim for Relief, Katz alleges thar all defendants engaged in unfair

competition in violation of California Business and Professions Code section 17200, Under
California’s Unfair Competition Act, unfair compelition means and includes any unlawful, unfair or

fraudulent business act or practice. See Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200; Klein v. Earth Elements
Inc., 39 Cal. App. 4th 965, 968 (1997); see also People ex rg]. Renne v. Servantes. 86 Cal. App. 4th

1081, 1087 (2001) (defining "unlawful business practice” as “one thar is forbidden by law, whether
civil, cniminal, federal, state, or municipal, statutory, regulatory, or court-made™).

Katz alleges that the “acts and conduct™ of defendants described in the complaint
“‘constitute(] an appropriation and invasion of property rights of plaintiff, and constitute unfair
competition” under section 17200. Complaint § 100. Katz seeks to recover “all proceeds and other
compensation received or 1o be received by Napster arising from its users’ direct infrin gements of
Plaintiff's music.” Complaint § 101. Katz’s unfair corpetiuon cause of action does not contain any
specific factual allegations relating to the individual defendants.

Although the nature and scope of the unfair comperition claim js ambiguous, it appears from
the allegartions of the complaint, as well as Katz’s representations at the hearing on this marer, that
the allegedly unlawful business practice at the heart of the unfair competition claim is copyright
infringement. As copyright infringement lies at the heart of the unfair competirion claim, the unfair
competition action is preempred by federal copyright law. See Kodadek v. MTV Nerworks, Inc,,
152 F.3d 1209, 1213 (%th Cir. 1998) {holding section 17200 unfair competition claim “based solely

on rights equivalent 1o those protected by the federal copyright laws™ and is preempted); Xerox
Corp. v. Apple Computer, [nc., 734 F. Supp. 1542, 1551 (N.D. Cal. 1990) (holding unfair

competition claim preempted where essence of unfair compettion claim is defendant’s alleged
unauthorized use of plaintiff’s copyrighted work). Karz's Seventh Claim for Relief must be

dismissed.

V. Interference With Beonomic Relations

In his Eighth Claim for Relief, Katz alleges that defendants interfered with his economic

- &
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relationship with retailers and distributors, including Valley Media, by distributing copies of Karz's
music without permission and with the intent to harm him financially. Cornplaint § 108. According
10 the complaint, Valley Media ended its relauonship with plaintiff as a result of defendant’s
conduct. Complaint 4 109,

To state a cause of acrion for the fort of interference with prospective economic advantage,
plaintiff must show (1) an economic relationship berween the plaintiff and some third party, with the
probability of future economic benefit 1o the plaintiff: (2) the defendant's knowledge of the
relarionship; (3) intentional acts on the part of the defendant designed to disrupt the relationship; (4)
actual distuption of the relationship; and (5) economic harm 10 the plamuff proximately caused by

the acts of the defendant.’ See Pacific Gas & Electric Co. v. Bear Steams & Co., 50 Cal. 3d 1118,

1126 & n.2. (1990),

Once 2gain, Katz relies on purely conclusory allegations and proffers no specific facts on
which 1o conclude that any of the individua) defendants interfered with Karz's economic
relationships. This cause of action must be dismissed because Katz has not alleged that defendants
knew of the relationships berween Karz and the retailers and distributors, intended to interfere with

such relationships or actually did so.

VI.  Motion for Sanctions

Durst asks the court jo award sanctions in the amount of $45,569.25, the amount of Durst’s
fees and costs, pursuant 1o Rule 17 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. Rule 11 requires the
imposition of sanctions when a cause is frivolous, legally unreasonable or without factual

foundation, or when it s brought for an improper purpose. See Conn v, Borjorguez, 967 F.2d 1418

(5th Cir. 1992). Durst contends that sanctions are appropriate because Katz’s allegations contain no
factual support and because Durst was named in the suit solely for publicity purposes.

Katz's comments at the hearing on this mater suggest 1o the cowrt that he might have had an
improper malive, such as harassment, in bringing suir against Durst. See Fed. R. Civ. P. 11X 1)
{defining “improper purpase™ to include harassment); see also Fed. R_ Civ. P. | 1(c) (authorizing

court to impose sanctions upon parties who have violated Rule | 1{b)). The record, however, is

10
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1 |l insufficient to determine thar such an improper purpose actually motivated Karz. The court is
2 | unwilling to grant Durst’s motion for sanctions on this record. If Durst can establish that Kawz
3 || brought the suit for the purpose of harassment, the court will reconsider its ruling.
4
5 || CONCLUSION
6 For the reasons stated above, the court hereby GRANTS defendants’” motions 10 dismiss,
7 § DISMISSES WITH PRETUDICE Katz’s complaint and DENIES defendant Durst’s motion for
8 | sancrions. |
9 IT IS SO ORDERED.

10

11 || Dared:

12

13 MARILYN HALL PATEL
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ENDNOTES

1. The complaint identifies Bozeman’s company as svangels.com. Complaint § 1 {. Bozeman
represents that svangels.com is the web site of his venture capital firm, Angel Investors,

2. In opposition to Barry’s motion to dismiss, Katz contends that Barry contributes 1o the
nfringement by “rout{ing] Napster as z legitimate service” and argues that Barry, as an active
member of the Napster management team, has “helped guide the growth” of the infringing activity.
Kaz’s Opp. at 5, 8. Even if these conclusory allegations appeared in the complaint, they would be
insufficient to satisfy Karz's pleading obligation.

On April 30, 2001, Karz submiued an additional declaration, accompanied by various
exhibits, purporting 1o support his opposition te the motions to dismiss. Because these materials are
confidential within the meaning of the protective order entered in this case, and because Kar
submitied the documents after the close of briefing in violation of Civil Local Rule 7-3(e), the count
by separate order directs that the documents be lodged under seal rather than filed.

Tt appears 1o the court that the only document ostensibly relating to defendant Bamryisaane-
mail addressed 10 Barry suggesting a possible relationship with a third party that would enable
Napster 1o work with the major record labels. Nothing in this document would SUpPpOIt an assertion
that Barxy substantially contributes to the alleged acts of direct infringement.

3. Included in Katz’s April 30, 2001 submission are e-mails to John Hummer regarding potential
business relationships between third parties and Napster and references 1o Napster’s funding. These
documenis do not provide a factual basis on which 1o conclude thar Hummer Winblad occupies a
position of control vis-a-vis Napster or that it substantially contributes 1o the alleged acts of
infringement in some meaningful way.

4. In opposition to the motion, Katz adds that Durst has “publicly stated that the activity by Napster
has increased [his] sales and [his] public celebrity.” Karz Opp. at 3. Karz contends that Durst has
benefined financially from the “pirating activity” of Napster. Id. Kaiz offers similar allegations in
his declaration submitted on April 30, 2000. Even if these allegations were included in the
complaint, none would rise to the level of substantial participation required to sustain a claim for
contributory infringement.

Katz’s reliance on Cable/Home Comm. Corp, v, Network Prod._ Inc., 902 F.2d 829 (1 I1th Cir.
1990}, is unwarranted. In Cable/Home, the court required evidence that the promoter engaged in
substantial participation in the alleged infringement. The court found the promoter liable for
conuibutory infringement upon 2 showing that the promoter provided funds and equipment 10
facilitate the duplication. See Cable/Home, 902 F.2d at 846.

5. To state a claim for intentional interference with contractual relations, plaintiffs musr allege (1) a
valid conrract between plaintiff and a third party; (2) defendant's knowledge of this contracy; (3)
defendant’s intentional acts designed 1o induce a breach or disruption of the conmractual relationship;
(4) actual breach or disruption of the contracal relationship; and (5) resulting damage. See Pacific
Gas & Elec,, 50 Cal. 3d at 1126. The tort of intentional interference with contractual relations
protects the same interest in stable economic relationships as does the tort of interference with
contract, though interference with prospective advantage does not require proof of a legally binding
confract. See id.

12
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Laurence F. Pulgram, Esq.
Fenwick & West LLP

275 Rattvery Street

18ch Fleor

San Francisco, CA 94111

Russell J. Frackman, Esq.
Mivchell Silberberg & Knupp
11377 W Olympic Blvd

Los Angeles, CA 50064

Stanley Pierve-Louis, Esq.
1330 Connecricur Avenue, N.W.,
Suite 300

Washingron, DC 20036

Barry I. Slounick, Esq.
Richards & O‘'Neil, LLP
885 Third Avenue

New York, NY 10022-4873
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MATTNEeVW J. Opper im, Esqg.
1330 Connecricur Avenue, N.W.
Suite 300

Washington, DC 20038

Howard E. King, Esg.

King, Purtich, Holmes, Paterno & Berlinex, LLP

1800 Avenue of the Stars
Twenty-Fifth Floor
Los Angeles, CA  90067-4506

Dean A. Morehous Jr, Esq.
Thelen Reid & Priest LLP

101 Second st

Sce 1800

San Francisce, CA  94105-3601

Reed R. Kathrein, Esq.

Milberg Weiss Bershad Hynes & Lexach LLP
1C0 Pine Streeg

Ste 2600

San Francisco, CA 84131

Mactthew Katz
23903 Harvesrer Road
Malibu, CA 50265

Charles E. Tillage, Esqg.
Cotchetr Pitre & Simon
840 Malcolm R4 Ste 200
Burlingame, CA 54010

Steven M. Cohen, Esq.

Kronish Lieb Weiner & Hellman LLb
1114 Avenue of the Americap

New York, NY 10036-77ss8

Edwin F. McPherson, Esqg.
McPherson & Kalmansohn
3801 Century Park Easrt
24th Floor

Los Angeles, CA 90067

Christepher J. Hunt, Esq.
Bartko Zankel Tarranc & Miller
900 Front Sr Ste 300

San Francisco, ©a 94111

Jeffrey G. Knowles, Esqg.
Coblentz Patch Duffy & Bass, LLP
222 Kearny St. 7th Flr.

San Francisco, CA 94108

Aldan Synnotrt, Esq,

Paul Weigs Rifkind Wharton & Garrison
1285 Avenue of the Americas

New York, NY 100319

Roberr L. Eiseanbach 1IT, BEagq.
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Cne Maritime Plaz 20th Flr
San Francisco, CA 541171-3580

Annecrte L. Hurst, Esq.

Howard Rice Nemerovski Canady Falk & Rabin
Three Embarcadero Centevy

7th Flrxr

San Francisco, CA %4111

Kevin T. Baine, Esqg.
Williams & Connolly
725 12th Street N.W.
WHashingrton, BRC 02005

David Henxy Dolkas, Esq.
Gray Cary Ware & Freidenrich
1755 Embarcadero Road

Palo Alro, CA 94303-3340

Christopher Tayback, Esq.

Quinn Emanuel COrquhart Oliver & Hedges LLP
865 S Figueroa Sr

i0ch Flr

Los Angeles, CA° 90017-3211

Richard W. king, Clerk

BY:
Apﬁgbéér, Depury Clerk
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FILED
! JUL - 9 2091
2 Ur i SEKinG
RORTHERN D13 TRCT OF paomnr
3 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT ANIA
4 NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
5
6
7 IN RE NAPSTER, INC, COPYRIGHT MDL No. C 00-1369
8 | LITIGATION
: ORDE
9
10 /
11 .
Plaintiff Marthew Katz in Katz v. Napster, Inc. et. al, C 00-4725 MHP, has submitted 1o the
12
couri an ex parte application for an order permiming the Declaration of Marthew Katz dated April 30,
13 :
2001, and six exhibits o be filed under seal. Karz argues that the do¢uments support his opposiuen
14
to defendants” motions to dismiss the complaint, which are currenily under submission.
15
After reviewing the documents, the court agrees that they are confidential within the meaning
16
of the protective order entered in this action. Pursuant to Civil Local Rule 7-3(e), however, no
17
additional memoranda, paper or leniers shall be filed once a reply is filed without prior court
18
approval. See Civ. Local R. 7-3(e). Katz represents that he obtained the material afier the April 10,
19
2001, hearing on the motion by reviewing the documents produced by defendant Hummer Winblad
20 ’
in the offices of Mitchell, Silberberg & Knupp, plaintiffs’ liaison counse! in In re Napster, MDL No.
21
00-1369. Karz offers no explanation as to why he did not review or obiain copies of the material
22 :
before the court took the matter under submission on April 10, 2001. Under these circumstances,
23
Karz has not made an adequate showing as 1o why the documents should be filed at this stage of the
24
proceedings.
25
AR
26
YA
27
ARS
28

L, e
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1 Accordingly, the court hereby ORDERS that the Declaration of Marthew Katz dated April
2 | 30, 2001, and the six exhibits accompanying the declaration be LODGED UNDER SEAL.
ITIS SO QRDERED.

Dated: q/ W/

YN HALL PATEL
Chief Judge
United States District Court
Northern District of California

A =B -~ EEEN S » SRV S

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
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19
20
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24
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awb
United States Districr Court
for the
Northern District of California
July 10, 2002

* * CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE = =+

Casze Number:M:00-cv-01369

Napgter, Inc.
vs

Napster, Inc.

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am an employee in the Office of
the Clerk, U.S. District Court, Northern Districr of Califeornia.

That en July 10, 2001, I SERVED a true and correcr copy {ies) of

the attvached, by placing said ceopyl(ies) in a postage paid envelope
-addressed to the person(s) hereinafrer listed, by depcsiting said

envelcpe in the U.S. Mail, or by placing said copy (ies) into an inter-cffice
delivery receptacle located in the Clerk’'s office.

Robert B. Silver, Esq. AR/MYP
Boies & Schiller LLP .

B0 Business Park Dr.

Armenk, NY 10504

Laurence F. Pulgram, Esqg.

Fenwick & West LLP

275 Battery Street

isch Fleoxr P
San Francisco, CA 94111

Russell J. Frackman, Eeqg.
Mitchell Silberberg & Knupp
11377 W Olympic Blvd

Los Angeles, CA 980064

Stanley Pierre-Louis, Esg.
1330 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.,
Suitce 300

Washingron, DC 20036

Barry I. Slotnick, Esq.
Richards & O‘Neil, LLP
885 Third Avenue

New York, NY 10022-4873
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Matthew J. Oppeéenh.im, Esg.
1330 Connecricut Avenue, N.W.
Suitce 300

wWashingron, DC 20036

Heward E. King, Esq.

King, Purtich, Holmes, Paterno & Berliner, LLP
1960 Avenue of rthe Stars

Twenty-~Fifrh Floor

Los Angeles, CA 90067-4506

Dean A. Morehous Jr, Esg.
Thelen Reid & Priest LLP

101 Second St

Sre 1800

San Francisgsco, CA  94105-3601

Reed R. Kathrein, Esg.

Milberg Weiss Bershad Hynes & Lerach LLP
100 Pine Srreer

Ste 2600

San Francisco, CA 984111

Marthew Katz
29803 Harvester Road
Malibu, ChA 202865

Charles E. Tillage, Esq.
Cotchetr Pitre & Simon
840 Malcolm Rd Ste 200
Burlingame, CA 94010

Steven M. Cohen, Eaqg.

Kronish Lieb Weiner & Hellman LLP
1114 Avenue of the Americas

New York, NY 10036-7798

Edwin ¥. McPherson, Esqg.
McPherson & Xalmansohn
1801 Century Park Eastc
24rh Floor

Los Angeles, CA 90067

Christopher J. Hunt, Esg.
Bartko Zankel Tarrant & Miller
900 Front St Sre 300

San Francisce, CA 94111

Jeffrey G. Knowles, Esq.
Coblentz Patch Duffy & Bass, LLP
222 Kearny Sv. 7th Flr.

San Francisco, CA 94108

Aidan Synnotrt, Esqg.

Paul Weiss Rifkind Wharton & Garrison
1285 Avenue of rthe Americas

New York, NY 10019

Robert L. Eisenbach III, Esq.




R R b4

01 02:36pm  From-COCLEY GODWARD 4158513699

One Maritime Plaz 20tvh Flr
San Francisco, CA 9%4111-3580

Annecte L. Hurst, Esqg.

Howard Rice Nemerovski Canady Falk & Rabin
Three Embarcaderc Center

7th Flr

San Francisco, €A 94111

Kevin T. Baine, Esg.
Williams & Connolly
725 12th Street N.W.
Hashington, DC  £2005

David Henry Dolkas, Esg.
Gray Cary Ware & Freidenrich
1755 Embarcaders Road

Palo Alve, CA 94303-33490

Christopher Tayback, Esqg.

Quinn Emanuel Urquhart Oliver & Hedges LLP
865 5 Figuerca St

i¢ch Flr

Los Angeles, CA 80017-3211

T-681  P.021/02)  F-416

king, Clerk

eputy Clerk




